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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Schech's Mill, a grist mill, was built in 1875-76 and is located one mile 
southeast of Sheldon and six miles northwest of Caledonia in the SW%, NE%, 
Section 5, T102N, R6W, Houston County. Water is supplied to the mill by a 
quarter mile combined head and tail race running along the west side of Beaver 
Creek beginning at the mill pond behind a 1922 concrete dam (replacing an 
earlier wood dam).

The mill is a two story structure built of broken course stone, rectangular 
in plan, 34 x 54 feet, on an east-west axis. The basement is exposed to the 
northwest. The building has a gabled roof of corrugated metal with a wood 
ventilating cupola centered on the ridge and a brick chimney on the north slope 
of the east end. The windows are arranged in three bays by four bays with six- 
over-six-light double hung sashes in segmental arches.

On the west end of the south side is a single low arch for the head race. 
The water exits on the west end of the north side through double arches after 
a ten foot drop. The main door is centered in the east end above a concrete 
loading platform and beneath an 1876 datestone. From the west end of the mill 
is.,a. ramp and a feed chute to the swine barn located to the west of the mill. 
Attached to the east end of the south wall is a small corrugated shed of more 
recent construction which does not detract from the integrity of the main structure.

The mill's interior is of timber frame construction. The interior walls 
are plastered on the first floor only with the upper floor walls remaining 
unfinished. A stairway in the northeast corner leads from basement to attic. 
Vertical grain and flour elevators occupy the center of the mill from basement 
to attic. In the west end of the basement is an open top concrete wheel pit 
constructed in 1924 containing three water turbines. The two original (1875-76) 
turbines are a 23-inch Leffel which powers the crusher, sheller and elevators, 
and a 35-inch Leffel which powers all milling machinery. A 23-inch Samson 
Upright Turbine was installed in 1924 to power a 22-inch Diamond Buhr Feed Mill. 
Power drive to all equipment is by shaft and belt.

The milling machinery is arranged for New Process or high grinding milling. 
Significant equipment includes four pairs of operating millstones enclosed in 
their original wood vats, two with hopper feed and two with the later "silent 
feed." There are three middlings purifiers, two from Martin's Middlings Purifier 
Co. and one early "Boss Purifier." There are also numerous reels, bolters, 
separators, and grain cleaners. Roller mills installed in the late nineteenth 
century were removed about 1947 to make room for a one ton Brower Mixer, the 
only significant intrusion on the mill interior. All of the mill equipment 
is operable using the water power although the present owner only runs the mill 
occasionally to grind flour and feed.

Other buildings at the site include a swine barn complex, a hay barn, and 
farmhouse. The swine barn complex, built in 1896, is located directly to the 
west of the mill building on the same axis and consists of two attached blocks, 
beginning with a one story square structure of broken course stone with a gable 
roof which is attached to the mill by the ramp and feed chute. Attached to the 
west wall of this building is a one story elongated structure of similar stone 
construction with a monitor roof. The timber frame hay barn is located to the • 
southeast of the mill building and possibly contains structural elements of an 
earlier mill building. The wood frame farmhouse is located to the south of the 
mill building.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Schech's Mill is significant for three reasons: (1) it is the only flour or 
grist mill in Minnesota known to contain a complete, unaltered, and operable 
equipment system for New Process or high grinding milling; (2) it is the only 
mill in Minnesota known to contain millstones in original installations, and (3) 
it is one of only three mills in Minnesota still operable solely by water power.

Built in 1875-76 in the midst of the southeast Minnesota milling region, 
Schech's Mill was established in the middle of the New Process era which opened 
with the 1871 invention of the middlings purifier, ending the long reign of 
Oliver Evans style low grinding, and closed with the introduction of the roller ^ 
mill about 1880 which marked the beginning of the modern automatic, all-roller, 
gradual reduction process. The important equipment combination for New Process 
milling is the middlings purifier operated in system with millstones (as opposed 
to roller mills). This is the system which has survived in Schech's Mill. In . 
fact, so swiftly did roller mills replace millstones after 1880 that Schech's 
Mill is the only mill in Minnesota in which original and unaltered millstone 
installations have survived.

The present mill building was built by John Blinn as a custom mill to 
replace a mid-1850s wood frame grist and saw mill at the same site, elements of 
which may have been incorporated into the hay barn.located southeast of the 
present mill. Although Blinn reportedly died before the new mill's completion, 
it continued to be known as Blinn's Mill until later in the nineteenth century 
when it was known as the Caledonia Grist Mill. The mill received its present 
name through the ownership of Michael J. Schech, a Bavarian miller who purchased 
the mill about 1887 and maintained a merchant milling operation. Steel roller 
mills apparently were installed during .Michael's tenure as miller. His son, 
Edward, was the miller from 1913 until his death in 1941 when merchant flour 
milling was discontinued. Edward's wife continued custom grinding operations 
until 1946. With the installation of the Brower Mixer in 1947, the mill's 
function was reduced to occasional feed grinding and the mill operation became 
secondary to the farm operation at the site. It exists today at about the same 
status although the present owner grinds whole wheat flour occasionally and 
opens the mill to visitors.
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Included within the boundaries of the property as nominated are the flour mill 
building, the 1896 swine barn complex, the hay barn and silo (possibly dating from 
the 1850s and reportedly containing structural elements of the first mill building 
at this location), the 1922 concrete dam, and the mill head race from dam to mill.
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